






 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION  

MEETING 

 

 

 

March 18, 2024 

 

 

1



BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OMAHA, NEBRASKA

BOARD MEETING DON STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
MARCH 18, 2024 5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET
6:00 P.M.

AGENDA

A. Call to Order

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the wall and available for public inspection.

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

D. Showcase - Recognition of Students

E. Public Comments on agenda items – This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

F. Routine Matters
1. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes – March 4, 2024
2. *Approval of Bills and receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File
3. Summary of the Committee of the Whole Meeting - March 11, 2024

G. Information Items
1. Superintendent’s Comments
2. Board Comments/Announcements

H. Unfinished Business - None

I. New Business
1. Reaffirm Policy 4105: Human Resources - District Induction Programs
2. Approval of Rule 4105.1: Human Resources - MPS Induction Program - Newly-employed Certificated or Licensed

Staff
3. Reaffirm Rule 4105.2: Human Resources - New Administrator Induction Program
4. First Reading of Policy 8100: Internal Board Policies - Organization
5. Reaffirm Policy 8000: Internal Board Policies - General Policy Statement
6. Approval of Contract for Millard North High School Baseball Field Drainage Project
7. Approval of Contract for Millard North High School Plaza Renovation
8. Approval of Contract for Millard South High School Pool Area Lighting Replacement
9. Approval of Contract for Kiewit Middle School Flooring Replacement
10. Approval of Personnel Actions: Recommendation to Hire, Resignation Agenda, Leave of Absence

J. Reports
1. Post Graduate Enrollment (Class of 2022), Degree Completion (Class of 2017), and College Preparatory (Class of

2020) Reports
2. Legislative Report

1

2

https://drive.google.com/file/d/15UHNO7S4WnMkJlxH2FHxPNOs1sJ1snhB/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1D-0ANeZY8-uVYnZYRZ-yhm1Ud9Bb3Rec/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1s2Wk1wF1QhP5aFfhnbRFIUmHgLVAdFx1/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Qp1Qjo6A6V69xy2D72dgDdx0leyTegzj/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WJV9_8BuoYfgvNP4p2ML3li5mVPaMQ99/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1rMr8gLax70rLoQ4UUUb2CdY0B9-aqlso/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1rMr8gLax70rLoQ4UUUb2CdY0B9-aqlso/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/11A9HMmHXFv_P3fpD1d_Tba0dq-Zz8Nus/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/10nS8wJCnsSvPvhO_vlmA3d3tJAQx9Ulr/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1fy5hqWGCL1Pr2m439BOIuN8-JnTQvOum/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1X7Fz30O02h-rkteVKJyNj-VSxdCoa7u1/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1K-gIfqAEktVlF79YgqntCnt3IoqTAntg/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1RRmsIPxQJDQELsZWmztA8doBz2v5RSd1/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1-eI_2tpyE2VTUmisHiYBtbk3l2WSowKr/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1AeFD86cC0UKHr1bpF-EwQ-Wy7yJiLWdC/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WhRCxEByCiHA1VbFnD26Bp54j_1oMEpx/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WhRCxEByCiHA1VbFnD26Bp54j_1oMEpx/view?usp=sharing


K. Future Agenda Items/ Board Calendar
1. Monday, April 1, 2024 - Board of Education Meeting - 6:00 p.m. at DSAC
2. Monday, April 8 - Friday, April 12, 2024 - No School - Spring Break
3. Friday, April 12, 2024 - District Holiday
4. Monday, April 15, 2024 - Board of Education Meeting - 6:00 p.m. at DSAC
5. Monday, May 6, 2024 - Board of Education Meeting - 6:00 p.m. at DSAC
6. Tuesday, May 7, 2024 - Foundation Scholarship Event - 7:00 p.m. at Foundation Office
7. Wednesday, May 8, 2024 - Employee Recognition Dinner - Social at 5:30 p.m. and Dinner at 6:30 p.m. at UNO

Scott’s Center
8. Monday, May 20, 2024 - Board of Education Meeting - 6:00 p.m. at DSAC
9. Saturday, May 25, 2024 - High School Graduation at Baxter Arena

MWHS at 9:00 a.m. / MNHS at 1:00 p.m. / MSHS at 5:00 p.m.

L. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

M. Adjournment

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion. Items may
be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member.

2

3

https://drive.google.com/file/d/15UHNO7S4WnMkJlxH2FHxPNOs1sJ1snhB/view?usp=sharing


BOARD OF EDUCATION
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OMAHA, NEBRASKA

BOARD MEETING DON STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER
MARCH 18, 2024 5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET
6:00 P.M.

ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM

A. Call to Order

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the wall and available for public inspection.

B. Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

D. Showcase - Recognition of Students

E. Public Comments on agenda items – This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

F.1* Motion by _________, seconded by _________, to approve the Board of Education Minutes from March 4, 2024.

F.2* Approval of Bills and receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File.

F.3 Summary of the Board Committee of the Whole Meeting – March 11, 2024

G.1 Superintendent’s Comments

G.2 Board Comments/Announcements

H.1 Unfinished Business - None

I.1 Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to reaffirm Policy 4105: Human Resources - District Induction
Programs.

I.2 Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to approve Rule 4105.1: Human Resources - MPS Induction
Program - Newly-employed Certificated or Licensed Staff

I.3 Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to reaffirm Rule 4105.2: Human Resources - New Administrator
Induction Program

I.4 First Reading of Policy 8100: Internal Board Policies - Organization.

I.5 Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to reaffirm Policy 8000: Internal Board Policies - General Policy
Statement.

I.6 Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, that the contract for the Millard North High School Baseball
Field Drainage Project be awarded to Mack Bros. Groundskeeping in the amount of $452,225 and that the Chief

1

4



Financial Officer be authorized to execute any and all documents related to such project.

I.7 Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, that the contract for the Millard North High School Plaza
Renovation be awarded to Mackie Construction in the amount (including the deductive change order) of $694,322.92
and that the Chief Financial Officer be authorized to execute any and all documents related to such project.

I.8 Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, that the contract for the Millard South High School Pool Area
Lighting Replacement be awarded to Superior Lighting in the amount of $258,650 and that the Chief Financial Officer
be authorized to execute any and all documents related to such project.

I.9 Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, that the contract for the Kiewit Middle School Flooring
Replacement be awarded to Commercial Flooring Systems in the amount of $69,340 and that the Chief Financial Officer
be authorized to execute any and all documents related to such project.

I.10 Motion by __________, seconded by ___________, to approve Personnel Actions: Recommendation to Hire,
Resignation Agenda, Leave of Absence.

J. Reports
1. Post Graduate Enrollment (Class of 2022), Degree Completion (Class of 2017), and College Preparatory (Class of

2020) Reports
2. Legislative Report

K. Future Agenda Items/ Board Calendar
1. Monday, April 1, 2024 - Board of Education Meeting - 6:00 p.m. at DSAC
2. Monday, April 8 - Friday, April 12, 2024 - No School - Spring Break
3. Friday, April 12, 2024 - District Holiday
4. Monday, April 15, 2024 - Board of Education Meeting - 6:00 p.m. at DSAC
5. Monday, May 6, 2024 - Board of Education Meeting - 6:00 p.m. at DSAC
6. Tuesday, May 7, 2024 - Foundation Scholarship Event - 7:00 p.m. at Foundation Office
7. Wednesday, May 8, 2024 - Employee Recognition Dinner - Social at 5:30 p.m. and Dinner at 6:30 p.m. at UNO

Scott’s Center
8. Monday, May 20, 2024 - Board of Education Meeting - 6:00 p.m. at DSAC
9. Saturday, May 25, 2024 - High School Graduation at Baxter Arena

MWHS at 9:00 a.m. / MNHS at 1:00 p.m. / MSHS at 5:00 p.m.

L. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.
Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins.

M. Adjournment
All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion. Items may
be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member.

2

5



MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17

A meeting of the Board of Education of the School District No. 17, in the county of Douglas in the state of Nebraska was
convened in open and public session at 6:00 p.m., Monday, March 4, 2024, at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606
South 147th Street.

Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Daily Record on Friday, March 1, 2024 a copy of
the publication is being attached to these minutes. Notice of this meeting was given to all members of the Board of
Education and a copy of their Acknowledgement of Receipt of Notice and the agenda are attached to these minutes.
Availability of the agenda was communicated in advance notice and in the notice of the Board of Education of this meeting.
All proceedings hereafter shown were taken while the convened meeting was open to the attendance of the public.

President Stacy Jolley that the open meeting laws are posted and available for public inspection and asked everyone to join in
the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll call was taken. Mrs. Schoenberger, Mr. Kennedy, Mrs. Jolley, Mr. Pate and Mrs. McGill Johnson were present.

Motion by Mike Kennedy, seconded by Lisa Schoenberger, to excuse Linda Poole from tonight's meeting. Voting in favor of
said motion was: Mr. Kennedy, Mrs. Jolley, Mr. Pate, Mrs. McGill Johnson, and Mrs. Schoenberger. Voting against were:
None. Motion carried.

Awards were presented to Employees of the Month Jeff Yost, Technology Facilitator at Ron Witt Support Services Center,
and Margrette Moodie, Custodian at Abbott Elementary School.

The Student Showcase highlighted:

● Millard West High School - Dance and Cheer
● Millard North High School - Dance and Cheer

Mrs. Jolley announced this is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only. There were no
requests to speak on agenda items.

Motion was made by Mike Kennedy, seconded by Lisa Schoenberger, to approve the Board of Education minutes for
February 5, 2024, and approve the bills and receive the treasurer’s report and place on file. Voting in favor of said motion
was: Mr. Kennedy, Mrs. Jolley, Mr. Pate, Mrs. McGill Johnson, and Mrs. Schoenberger. Voting against were: None. Motion
carried.

Superintendent’s Comments:
Dr. Schwartz said tomorrow is Nebraska Teacher Appreciation Day. Dr. Schwartz said that we typically celebrate this day as
a staff appreciation day. He said it is a great time to celebrate all the extraordinary staff we have in our district.

Dr. Schwartz shared that we are nearing the end of winter activity season. Our groups have had wonderful seasons. Dr.
Schwartz shared that Millard West girls basketball won their first ever state championship and Millard South wrestling won
their six straight state championship. He also shared that we had ten national qualifiers for speech & debate and have amazing
show choir programs across the district. Dr. Schwartz also shared that it is nice to see spring sports starting off with good
weather.

Dr. Schwartz congratulated Jessica Carson on being a recipient of the Nebraska State Interscholastic Athletic Administrators
Association Outstanding Service award.

Board Comments:

Mrs. Jolley: Mrs. Jolley congratulated student board representative, Reema Guda on being a national qualifier for speech and
debate for the fourth year in a row. Reems is the third person in Millard North history to qualify all four years.

Mrs. Jolley also shared that Millard North’s last show choir competition of the year is this weekend.

1

6



Mrs. Jolley shared that she will have the opportunity to read at a few schools this week as part of Read Across America.

Mr. Pate:
Mr. Pate shared that he decided to not file to run for re-election this year. He shared that after 28 years on the school board,
25 years on the Millard Public Schools Foundation board, 6 years on the Learning Community Board, 5 years Cottonwood
PTO he has a lot invested. Mr. Pate shared that it was a hard decision but he knows Millard is in good hands and it has been a
privilege.

Mr. Pate thanked all of the educators as there is no more important job in this country than educating our students.

Mrs. McGill Johnson: Mrs. McGill Johnson said that Mr. Pate’s dedication and perspective he has brought to the board is
irreplaceable.

Mr. Kennedy:
Mr. Kennedy shared that Mike Pate and Linda Poole have a wealth of knowledge on the history of the Millard Board. He said
the longevity and work done by them have made the board what it is today. Mr. Kennedy thanked Mr. Pate for his service.
Mr. Kennedy shared that this community has high expectations of our board.

Mrs. Lisa Schoenberger:
Mrs. Schoenberger shared that she has seen many posts and tweets of former teachers and schools supporting their former
students who are now high school students. She shared that this really shows you how tight these communities are and how
vested in our students.

Mrs. Schoenberger thanked MEP math facilitators Matt Scott and Tami Whitted for their work on the new math curriculum.

Mrs. Schoeberger said that it has been an honor to serve with Mr. Pate.

Josephine McPhaull, student representative from Millard South High School, and Tori Karloff, student representative from
Millard West High School reported on the academic and athletic happenings at their respective schools.

Unfinished Business: None

New Business:
Motion by Mike Pate, seconded by Mike Kennedy, to approve Amy Becker as the Principal at Bryan Elementary School.
Voting in favor of said motion was: Mrs. Jolley, Mr. Pate, Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mrs. Schoenberger, and Mr. Kennedy. Voting
against were: None. Motion carried.

Motion by Lisa Schoenberger, seconded by Mike Kennedy, that the contract for the Aldrich Elementary School Generator
Replacement be awarded to Downs Electric in the amount of $88,350 and that the Chief Financial Officer be authorized
to execute any and all documents related to such project. Chief Financial Officer Chad Meisgeier shared that a brief
description of the project and photos have been added to the bid packets. Mr. Meisgeier said Jeff Hemji from Morrissey
Engineering was available to address questions and concerns from the Board. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mr. Pate,
Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mrs. Schoenberger, Mr. Kennedy, and Mrs. Jolley. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.

Motion by Amanda McGill Johnson, seconded by Mike Pate, that the contract for the South High School Pool and Domestic
Boiler Replacements be awarded to Hayes Mechanical in the amount of $378,600 and that the Chief Financial Officer
be authorized to execute any and all documents related to such project. Chief Financial Officer Chad Meisgeier said Jeff
Hemji from Morrissey Engineering was available to address questions and concerns from the Board. Voting in favor of said
motion was: Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mrs. Schoenberger, Mr. Kennedy, Mrs. Jolley, and Mr. Pate. Voting against were: None.
Motion carried.

Motion by Lisa Schoenberger, seconded by Amanda McGill Johnson, that the contract for the West High School Track
Replacement be awarded to Nemaha Sports Construction, LLC. in the amount of $1,358,251.50 and that the Chief Financial
Officer be authorized to execute any and all documents related to such project. Chief Financial Officer Chad Meisgeier said
Joe Zadina from Lamp Rynearson was available to address questions and concerns from the Board. Voting in favor of said
motion was: Mrs. Schoenberger, Mr. Kennedy, Mrs. Jolley, Mr. Pate, and Mrs. McGill Johnson. Voting against were: None.
Motion carried.

2

7



Motion by Lisa Schoenberger, seconded by Amanda McGill Johnson, that the contract for the Keith Lutz Horizon High
School Paving Replacement be awarded to Swain Construction in the amount of $657,293.67 and that the Chief Financial
Officer be authorized to execute any and all documents related to such project. Chief Financial Officer Chad Meisgeier said
Joe Zadina from Lamp Rynearson was available to address questions and concerns from the Board. Voting in favor of said
motion was: Mr. Kennedy, Mrs. Jolley, Mr. Pate, Mrs. McGill Johnson, and Mrs. Schoenberger. Voting against were: None.
Motion carried.

Motion by Amanda McGill Johnson, seconded by Lisa Schoenberger, that the contract for the Reeder Elementary School
Hard Surface Replacement be awarded to Van Winkle Construction Services in the amount of $87,860 and that the Chief
Financial Officer be authorized to execute any and all documents related to such project. Chief Financial Officer Chad
Meisgeier said Joe Zadina from Lamp Rynearson was available to address questions and concerns from the Board. Voting in
favor of said motion was: Mrs. Jolley, Mr. Pate, Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mrs. Schoenberger, and Mr. Kennedy. Voting against
were: None. Motion carried.

Motion by Lisa Schoenberger, seconded by Mike Pate, that the contract for the Sandoz Elementary School Paving
Replacement be awarded to TR Construction in the amount of $251,241.30 and that the Chief Financial Officer be authorized
to execute any and all documents related to such project. Chief Financial Officer Chad Meisgeier said Joe Zadina from
Lamp Rynearson was available to address questions and concerns from the Board. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mr.
Pate, Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mrs. Schoenberger, Mr. Kennedy, and Mrs. Jolley. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.

Motion by Amanda McGill Johnson, seconded by Mike Pate, to approve the Memorandum of Understanding with
Connections at Project Harmony. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mrs. McGill Johnson, Mrs. Schoenberger, Mr.
Kennedy, Mrs. Jolley, and Mr. Pate. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.

Motion by Amanda McGill Johnson, seconded by Mike Kennedy, to approve the Elementary Learning Center Programming
Interlocal Agreement for the Summer 2024 Special Project.

Voting in favor of said motion was: Mrs. Schoenberger, Mr. Kennedy, Mrs. Jolley, Mr. Pate, and Mrs. McGill Johnson. Voting
against were: None. Motion carried.

Motion by Mike Pate, seconded by Mike Kennedy, to approve Personnel Actions: Recommendation to Hire: Diane M.
Russell, Madelene McCracken, Kaitlyn D. Drake, Melody R. Kjerstad, Tatum L. Wolzen, Kara M. Trampe, Joselyn M.
Schnakenberg, Theo E. Hennings, Lucas C. Gappa, Kelsie D. Premer, Brennan T. Casico, Alexis M. Rouse, Katherine J.
Rupe, Katherine G. Wasser, Emily J. Lorenzen, Madeline E. Sossi-Jones, Abigail M. Karloff; Resignation Agenda: Elizabeth
A. Tompkins, Kaitlyn N. Little, Alessandra C. Derks, Rachel A. Mathis, Kristy L. McGuire, William C. Duncan, Alycia K.
Ervin, James M. Feeney III, Emilee A. Blackstone, Rebecca A. Terrell, Sara M. Vance, Nathan A. Alfson, Kristen D. Aken,
Linda C. Dunn, Miranda H. Cormaci, Sandro R. DeAngelis; Voluntary Separation Program (VSP): Cherilyn R. Wicks,
Dawn M. Lanham, Matthew J. Gurnett, Janine S. Ellis, Ellen Y. Kramer; Contract Addendum: Nicole M. Beins, Amber V.
Frantz, Jacqueline M. Ottemann, Jessica M. Hamzhie. Voting in favor of said motion was: Mr. Kennedy, Mrs. Jolley, Mr.
Pate, Mrs. McGill Johnson, and Mrs. Schoenberger. Voting against were: None. Motion carried.

Reports:

Insurance Report
The District has engaged the services of the FNIC (formerly Harry A. Koch Company) as its insurance consultant. Each year,
the consultant makes a report to the Board and addresses any questions the board members may have. Bill Unger,
representative with FNIC, was available to give a short presentation.

Legislative Report
Director of Strategic Projects & External Affairs Dr. Todd Tripple provided the board with a legislative update. Dr. Tripple
said that today was the 37th day of the 60 day session. Dr. Tripple said that the school finance plan is still being sorted out.
Dr. Tripple shared that the Revenu Committee is working through a package that may consist of LB241, LB1316, LB1414,
LB1415 but which components of those bills remain to be seen. Dr. Tripple said that we continue to have very productive
conversations with our senators. Dr. Tripple provided an overview of the bills of interest to the district. He shared several
bills that the district supports as well as some that the district does not.

3

8



9



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Millard Public Schools 
 

March 18, 2024 
 
 
 

10



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Mar 18, 2024

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 514099  02/29/2024 144329  AIM HIGH TEST PREP CO              $2,976.00

514101  02/29/2024 142704  CITIBANK N.A.                      $325.70

514102  02/29/2024 143459  GREAT PLAINS COMMUNICATIONS HOLDING $1,396.24

514105  02/29/2024 064800  METRO UTILITIES DISTRICT OF OMAHA  $86,030.09

514106  02/29/2024 142160  NEBRASKA SPEECH & DEBATE ASSN      $345.00

514107  02/29/2024 142160  NEBRASKA SPEECH & DEBATE ASSN      $145.00

514108  02/29/2024 142160  NEBRASKA SPEECH & DEBATE ASSN      $370.00

514109  02/29/2024 070800  OMAHA PUBLIC POWER DISTRICT        $329,029.51

514110  02/29/2024 109843  T-MOBILE USA INC                   $3,979.67

514111  02/29/2024 139797  US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION       $99.00

514132  03/07/2024 102451  INTERNATIONAL BACCALAUREATE        $744.00

514133  03/07/2024 064800  METRO UTILITIES DISTRICT OF OMAHA  $44,733.55

514134  03/07/2024 131328  MILLER ELECTRIC COMPANY            $204.90

514135  03/07/2024 071760  PATTON EQUIPMENT COMPANY INC       $1,664.00

514137  03/07/2024 068840  UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT OMAHA    $120.00

514139  03/18/2024 144546  MARGARET AKATU                     $954.39

514140  03/18/2024 143506  ANZALONE CRUSHR LLC                $750.00

514141  03/18/2024 012989  APPLE COMPUTER INC                 $782.90

514142  03/18/2024 144197  AVIS BUDGET GROUP INC              $162.64

514143  03/18/2024 144548  ASHLEY BUNTROCK                    $284.33

514144  03/18/2024 135648  SUSAN M CHADWICK                   $289.00

514145  03/18/2024 143973  CHRYSLER CAPITAL                   $499.00

514146  03/18/2024 135082  OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CTRS OF NE PC  $182.00

514147  03/18/2024 F05300  BETTINA DELGADILLO LOZANO          $999.25

514148  03/18/2024 130731  FIRST WIRELESS INC                 $770.70

514149  03/18/2024 139409  MARGARET F FRICKE                  $80.00

514150  03/18/2024 142777  HOME DEPOT USA INC                 $58.45

514151  03/18/2024 142777  HOME DEPOT USA INC                 $136.88

Mar 12, 2024 1

11



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Mar 18, 2024

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

01 514152  03/18/2024 142777  HOME DEPOT USA INC                 $208.30

514153  03/18/2024 133397  HY-VEE INC                         $618.71

514154  03/18/2024 049851  HY-VEE INC                         $72.76

514155  03/18/2024 133037  JENSEN TIRE & AUTO #15             $37.40

514156  03/18/2024 056276  KELVIN LP                          $131.45

514157  03/18/2024 100058  LINCOLN EAST HIGH SCHOOL           $150.00

514158  03/18/2024 144547  AMY MACKIE-BARR                    $1,679.23

514160  03/18/2024 066010  MONEY HANDLING MACHINES, INC.      $2,974.00

514161  03/18/2024 107732  BRIAN L NELSON                     $1,420.00

514163  03/18/2024 142167  PRISM HEALTH GROUP LLC             $5,560.50

514165  03/18/2024 090242  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE              $169.47

514166  03/18/2024 139797  US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION       $167.00

514167  03/18/2024 144549  KIMBERLY S WAITE                   $1,763.87

E106811 03/07/2024 040537  WOLSELEY INVESTMENTS INC           $800.09

E106812 03/18/2024 143654  JEREDITH BRANDS LLC                $53,067.00

E106813 03/18/2024 143184  ENTERPRISE FM TRUST                $2,449.95

E106814 03/18/2024 138181  KIDWELL ELECTRIC COMPANY INC       $2,542.00

E106815 03/18/2024 138304  TIME MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS            $50.00

E106816 03/18/2024 093650  VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC              $57.72

01 - Total $552,031.65

06 514100  02/29/2024 144189  MARC A BIRKEY                      $280.00

514141  03/18/2024 012989  APPLE COMPUTER INC                 $419,980.34

06 - Total $420,260.34

07 514159  03/18/2024 139317  MMC MECHANICAL CONTRACTORS INC     $8,742.31

514162  03/18/2024 140085  SAMPSON CONSTRUCTION CO INC        $21,706.00

514164  03/18/2024 084019  SOL LEWIS ENGINEERING COMPANY      $274,500.00

07 - Total $304,948.31

11 514110  02/29/2024 109843  T-MOBILE USA INC                   $36.94

Mar 12, 2024 2

12



Millard Public Schools  Check Register Prepared for the Board Meeting for  Mar 18, 2024

Fund Check Number Check Date Vendor Number Vendor Name Transaction Amount

11 514154  03/18/2024 049851  HY-VEE INC                         $325.00

11 - Total $361.94

50 514130  03/07/2024 144010  MARAH COVER                        $1,984.59

514131  03/07/2024 144019  ERIC J HAYES JR                    $1,722.20

514136  03/07/2024 141700  JENNIFER JULIE RANDALL             $1,524.63

514138  03/07/2024 138500  HEATH F WEBER                      $1,090.70

50 - Total $6,322.12

99 514130  03/07/2024 144010  MARAH COVER                        ($38.00)

514131  03/07/2024 144019  ERIC J HAYES JR                    ($38.00)

514136  03/07/2024 141700  JENNIFER JULIE RANDALL             ($38.00)

514138  03/07/2024 138500  HEATH F WEBER                      ($38.00)

99 - Total ($152.00)

Overall - Total $1,283,772.36

Mar 12, 2024 3

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



Committee Meeting Minutes
March 11, 2024

The members of the Board of Education met as a Committee of the Whole on Monday, March 11, 2024 at the Don Stroh
Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street.

Board Vice President, Mike Kennedy called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Mr. Kennedy announced that the open meeting
laws are posted and available for public inspection and it is now the proper time for public questions and comments on
agenda items only. There were no requests to speak.

Board members present were: Stacy Jolley, Linda Poole, Mike Kennedy, Lisa Schoenberger, Mike Pate and Amanda McGill
Johnson.

Strategic Plan Update
Assistant Superintendent for Leadership, Planning & Evaluation Dr. Kim Saum-Mills shared that tonight they will provide an
update on the implementation of our 2023 Strategic Plan. Dr. Saum-Mills said that Millard is in year two of this plan and year
one of the implementation phase. Dr. Saum-Mills reminded the board of the three strategies in the 2023 plan which are:

● Strategy 1:We value our changing demographics and will maximize our systems, educational programs, and
instructional practices to ensure high levels of academic achievement and growth for all students.

● Strategy 2:We will be the destination school district of choice by strengthening our competitive programs and
innovative offerings to retain and recruit students and staff.

● Strategy 3: In partnership with our community, we will effectively tell the story of Millard’s excellence and increase
support for our district and public education.

Dr. Saum-Mills said that four action plans were activated and began implementation this year. Each of the leaders in charge
of the action plans spoke about the progress of the implementation. Each of these action plans will continue being
implemented.

● Strategy 1.2 - Executive Director of Assessment, Research, and Evaluation Dr. Darin Kelberlau provided an update
and shared that the specific result to be met for Strategy 1.2 is to maximize support for diverse learners by
integrating data resources to optimize our academic and behavior systems.

● Strategy 1.3 - Associate Superintendent of Human Resources Dr. Kevin Chick provided an update and shared that
the specific result to be met for Strategy 1.3 is to evaluate and refine allocation systems for staffing and resources
based on building and district metrics that will positively impact student learning.

● Strategy 2.2 - Associate Superintendent of Educational Services Dr. Heather Phipps provided an update and shared
that the specific result to be met for Strategy 2.2 is to evaluate and expand current and future programs of choice and
activities to retain and attract students to Millard Public Schools.

● Strategy 2.4 - Chief Financial Officer Chad Meisgeier provided an update and shared that the specific result to be
met for Strategy 2.4 is to design, renovate, and maintain facilities to attract and retain students and staff.

In 2024-25 we will also activate two additional plans:
● Strategy 1.1 - Associate Superintendent of Educational Services Dr. Heather Phipps will lead this plan. The specific

result is Refine our current educational practices to address various learning needs and ensure rigorous instruction.

● Strategy 3.2 - Director of Communications Rebecca Kleeman will lead this plan. The specific result is Maximize
our communication systems to ensure access and transparency of information and to spotlight Millard Public
Schools.

Educational Services Updates- Curriculum and College and Career Readiness
Associate Superintendent of Educational Services Dr. Heather Phipps provided a quick update from the Educational Services
Department. Dr. Phipps reminded the board of the four year curriculum cycle phases. Dr. Phipps shared what each phase
consists of and where we are with each of the subject areas currently in cycle.

● Phase I- Research and Framework Development
○ Family and Consumer Science

1

115



116



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

 

Agenda Item:  Reaffirm Policy 4105 District Induction Programs 

 
 

Meeting Date:  March 18, 2024 

 
 

Background/              
Description:  

    Seven (7) Year Review 

  
        

Action Desired:     Reaffirm 

           
          

Policy /  
Strategic Plan 
Reference:   

District Parameter - We will attract, develop, and retain the highest quality staff 
dedicated to achieving our mission and objectives. 

 

                                                                                                                                  
    

Responsible 
Person(s): 

    Dr. Kim Saum-Mills, Joe Vonderhaar, Dr. Kevin Chick 

 
   
Superintendent’s 
Signature:  

      

                                                             
  
 
 
 
 
 

117



Human Resources 
 
District Induction Programs 
     MPS Induction Program 
     New Administrator Induction Program 4105 

 
 

The Superintendent shall create and maintain a comprehensive District Induction Program for all first through 
third year newly employed certificated or licensed staff members and first and second year administrators new to their 
position. 

 
 

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-761 
Title 92, Nebraska Administrative Code, Chapter 26 

 
Related Rules: 4105.1, 4105.2 

 

Policy Approved: February 5, 2001 Millard Public Schools 
Revised:  October 7, 2002; March 15, 2010, April 4, 2016 Omaha, Nebraska 
Renumbered from 6440: March 15, 2010 
Reaffirmed:  March 18, 2024 

118



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

 

Agenda Item:  Revise Policy 4105.1 MPS Induction Program: Newly-employed Certificated or 
Licensed Staff 

 
 

Meeting Date:  March 18, 2024 

 
 

Background/              
Description:  

    Seven (7) Year Review 

  
        

Action Desired:     Approval 

           
          

Policy /  
Strategic Plan 
Reference:   

District Parameter - We will attract, develop, and retain the highest quality staff 
dedicated to achieving our mission and objectives. 

 

                                                                                                                                  
    

Responsible 
Person(s): 

    Joe Vonderhaar, Dr. Kim Saum-Mills, Dr. Kevin Chick 

 
   
Superintendent’s 
Signature:  

      

                                                             
  
 
 
 
 
 

119



Human Resources 
 
MPS Induction Program         4105.1 
Newly-employed Certificated or Licensed Staff 
 
The purpose of the MPS Induction Program is to maximize staff potential and impact student achievement by 
cultivating relationships that foster personal growth and effectiveness in the District. 
 

I. All first-year and newly-employed certificated or licensed staff members (in their first three years of 
employment) will participate in the MPS Induction Program. 

 
II. Definitions: 

 
A.  Staff members participating in the MPS Induction Program are newly-employed certificated or 

licensed staff members.  
 

B.  A mentor will be defined as a certificated or licensed staff member who has been employed by the 
District for a minimum of three (3) years, who is not the first-year or newly-employed staff 
member’s supervisor, or an administrator in the District, who is regularly employed by the District 
for the instruction of students, who has received mentor training, who has demonstrated the 
competencies necessary for successful teaching, and who assists a first-year or newly-employed 
staff member toward mastery of teaching competencies. A mentor is assigned a mentee by his/her 
building principal, supervisor, or Leadership & Learning Department designee and is paid 
a stipend for providing mentoring services to a first-year or newly-employed staff member. 
Participation is voluntary for the mentor. 

 
C. A buddy will be defined as a certificated or licensed staff member who has not completed the 

mentor training, but has been identified by his/her building principal or supervisor as demonstrating 
the competencies necessary for successful teaching and is deemed appropriate to assist a first-
year or newly-employed staff member toward successful assimilation into the District and building 
culture. A buddy is assigned a newly-employed staff member by his/her building principal, 
supervisor, or Leadership & Learning Department designee. A buddy is not eligible for a 
stipend. 

 
D. A mentee will be defined as a first-year or newly-employed certificated or licensed staff member 

who has been assigned a mentor. 
 

E. A curriculum contact will be defined as a certificated or licensed staff member who has been 
identified as demonstrating the competencies necessary for successful teaching and is deemed 
appropriate to assist a first-year or newly-employed staff member toward master of teaching 
competencies. A curriculum contact is assigned a PreK-12, first-year or newly-employed staff 
member specialist only when that first-year or newly-employed staff member specialist is the only 
specialist in his/her position in the building. A curriculum contact is assigned by the 
Leadership & Learning Department designee. A curriculum contact is paid a stipend when 
they are a trained district mentor. 

 
F. A Critical Friends Group Facilitator will be defined as a certificated or licensed staff member who 

has been identified by his/her building principal or supervisor as demonstrating the competencies 
necessary for successful teaching and is deemed appropriate to serve as a Critical Friends Group 
Facilitator to a group of certificated or licensed staff members who are in their second year of 
employment with the district. 

 

120



G. A Peer Coaching partner will be defined as a certificated or licensed staff member who has been 
identified by his/her building principal or supervisor as demonstrating the competencies necessary 
or successful teaching and is deemed appropriate to participate in Peer Coaching as a partner to a 
certificated or licensed staff member who is in his/her third year of employment with the 
District. 

 
III. The MPS Induction Program will include but not be limited to the following. 

 
A. Year One:  Assignment of a mentor, buddy, or curriculum contact as appropriate for each first-year or 

newly-employed staff member. This assignment, along with supervision from the building principal, is  
intended to ensure support for each first-year or newly-employed staff member, assistance toward  
the mastery of teaching competencies, and successful assimilation into the District and building  
culture.  A mentor handbook outlining procedures, roles and responsibilities is provided to all mentors, 
mentees and administrators. 
 

B. Year Two: Assignment to a Critical Friends Group will be made for each certificated or licensed staff 
member in his/her second year of employment with the District. This assignment, along with supervision 
from the building principal, is intended to ensure that this certificated or licensed staff member gains 
increased understanding of the Indicators of Effective Teaching and Learning in the Millard Instructional 
Model. 

 
C. Year Three:  Assignment of a Peer Coaching partner will be made for each certificated or licensed staff 

member in his/her third year of employment with the District. This assignment, along with supervision 
from the building principal, is intended to ensure that this certificated or licensed staff member gains 
increased understanding of the Indicators of Effective Teaching and Learning in the Millard 
Instructional Model. 
 

D. Information about the MPS Induction Program will be communicated on the Leadership & Learning 
website. 

 
 

 
Related Policies and Rules: 4105, 4105.2 

 

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-761 
Title 92, Nebraska Administrative Code, Chapter 26 

 
Rule Approved: February 5, 2001 Millard Public Schools 
Revised: October 7, 2002; March 19, 2007; March 15, 2010, April 4, 2016,                            Omaha Nebraska 
September 6, 2022, March 18, 2024  

 
Renumbered from 6440.1: March 15, 2010 

121



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

 

Agenda Item:  Reaffirm Rule 4105.2 New Administrator Induction Program 

 
 

Meeting Date:  March 18, 2024 

 
 

Background/              
Description:  

    Seven (7) Year Review 

  
        

Action Desired:     Reaffirm 

           
          

Policy /  
Strategic Plan 
Reference:   

District Parameter - We will attract, develop, and retain the highest quality staff 
dedicated to achieving our mission and objectives. 

 

                                                                                                                                  
    

Responsible 
Person(s): 

    Dr. Kim Saum-Mills & Dr. Kevin Chick 

 
   
Superintendent’s 
Signature:  

      

                                                             
  
 
 
 
 
 

122



Human Resources 
 
New Administrator Induction Program       4105.2 
 

The purpose of the New Administrator Induction Program is to prepare administrators for their 
positions in Millard Public Schools.  This will be accomplished through professional develop-
ment aligned to their mutual commitments and job accountabilities. 

 

I. All first-year and newly employed administrators (in their first two years of employ-
ment) will participate in the District’s New Administrator Induction Program.   
 

II. The MPS Leadership Framework will serve as a resource to align the professional de-
velopment, help new administrators self-assess and develop specific leadership skills, 
and improve staff performance and student achievement. 

 
III. Definitions: 

 
A. Administrators new to their administrative position will participate in the New 

Administrator Induction Program. 
 

B. A mentor will be defined as a current administrator who has been employed by 
the District for a minimum of three (3) years and who is not the supervisor of 
the new administrator.  

 
C. A mentee will be defined as an administrator in his/her first year of an adminis-

trative position. 
 
IV. Information about the New Administrator Induction Program will be communicated on 

the Leadership & Learning website. 
 

 
Related Policies and Rules: 4105, 4105.1 
                                                                                                   
Rewritten Rule Approved:  April 4, 2016   
Reaffirmed: March 18, 2024    

                                                  Millard Public Schools                                                         
                                                                                                                              Omaha Nebraska 

 
 

 

123



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Agenda Item:  First Reading of Policy 8100 Internal Board Policies - Organization 

Meeting Date: March 18, 2024 

Background/              
Description:  

  7 Year Policy & Rule Review 

Action Desired:  First Reading 

Policy /  
Strategic Plan 
Reference:   

 NA 

Responsible 
Person(s): 

 Dr. Kim Saum-Mills, Assistant Superintendent    

Superintendent’s 
Signature: 

124



Internal Board Policies 
 
Organization 8100 

 

The Millard Public School District is a duly organized Class III district and a body corporate possessing all the usual 
powers of a public corporation. The corporate name is Douglas County School District No. 17. It is also known as 
the Millard School District. 

 
The Millard School Board, also known as the Board of Education, is the governing body of the Millard School 
District and shall consist of six members who are legal voters of the Millard School District. The school Board has 
and exercises quasi-judicial powers as provided by statute. The school Board may include at least one nonvoting 
member who is a public high school student in the District. and who is selected by the school Board. A nonvoting 
member is excluded from closed or executive session of the school  Board. 

 
The six members of the Millard School Board shall serve terms of four years. The terms of office are staggered so 
that three members are elected each year of statewide primary and statewide general elections and shall take office 
on the first Thursday after the first Tuesday of the January following the election. The terms of three members 
whose terms expire shall expire on the first Thursday after the first Tuesday in January following the statewide 
primary and statewide general elections. Each elected member at the beginning of the member’s term shall take the 
oath of office required by law. 

 
The Millard School Board shall select its own officers and make its own rules and regulations not inconsistent with 
any statute. At the first meeting of the school Board in January of each year and at the meeting when newly elected 
members take office and annually thereafter the school Board will elect from its members a president, vice - 
president, secretary and treasurer. No school Board member except the secretary shall accept or receive any 
compensation for services performed in discharging the duties of his or her office.   

 
In all meetings of the Millard School Board the majority of the members will constitute a quorum for the transaction 
of business.  Regular meetings of the school Board shall be held on the first and third Mondays of each month 
except when postponed for good cause; provided however, that at least one of the meetings shall be held on or 
before the third Monday of the month. 

 
 

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat§§ 79-526, 79-405, 79-407, 79-101, 79-520, 79-543, 79-547, 79-554, 
79-559, 79-564, 32-543 

 

Policy Adopted:  February 4, 1974 Millard Public Schools 
Revised: December 2, 2002, Revised March 6, 2017 Omaha, NE  
Revised April 1, 2024 
Reaffirm:  August 2, 2010 

125



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

 

Agenda Item:  Reaffirm Policy 8000 Internal Board Policies - General Policy Statement 

 
 

Meeting Date:  March 18, 2024 

 
 

Background/              
Description:  

    7 Year Policy & Rule Review 

  
        

Action Desired:      Reaffirm 

           
          

Policy /  
Strategic Plan 
Reference:   

     NA  

                                                                                                                                  
    

Responsible 
Person(s): 

     Dr. Kim Saum-Mills, Assistant Superintendent     

 
   
Superintendent’s 
Signature: 

 

      

                                                             
  
 
 
 
 
 

126



Internal Board Policies 
 
General Policy Statement 8000 

 

The Millard School Board facilitates the performance of its statutory responsibilities by establishing District 
policies. Establishing District policies is a legislative function of the Board. The policies adopted by the Millard 
School Board establish and publish the guidelines and goals for the Millard School District community, its residents, 
students, staff, and administration. 

 
The Board shall establish all general policies for implementation by the Superintendent. The policies shall be written 
and, after adoption by the Board, shall be used in the management and operation of the District. All policies will be 
adjusted to follow the standard outline format. 

 
Policies that are appropriate to the educational responsibility to provide education to students and staff, and that 
prescribe the rules and regulations for the conduct and management of the operations of the District shall be 
established with the advice of the Superintendent. 

 
After development and adoption of Board policies, the Board shall continue to perform its legislative functions by 
reviewing reports on the policies and other matters concerning those policies that come before the Board. The 
policies should be reviewed from time to time to determine the effectiveness of the policies and the need for 
amendment, repeal, or other disposition of the policy. 

 
All proposals for a policy or policies shall be submitted to the Board in writing after being first submitted in writing 
to the Superintendent who will consult with and advise the president of the Board as to the proposal. The 
Superintendent and the Board president shall place on the agenda for a future meeting the proposed policy or other 
communications concerning policies for discussion concerning such a policy or proposed policy. Proposals may be 
submitted by any resident of the Millard Public School District by submitting the proposal or proposals, in writing, 
to the Superintendent. 

 
Policies enacted by the Board are the legislative actions by the Board, which are implemented by the Superintendent 
in accordance with professional educational and administrative standards. The policies shall be implemented by 
regulations and directives by the office of the Superintendent and other administrators as directed by the 
Superintendent. 

 
The Superintendent shall have the responsibility for providing the Board with information as to necessary policies 
and changes in existing policies. 

 
 

Policy Adopted: Millard Public Schools 
Revised: December 3, 1990; December 2, 2002; March 6, 2006 Omaha, NE 
Reaffirm: August 2, 2010, February 20, 2017; March 18, 2024 

127



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

Agenda Item: Approval of Contract for Millard North High School Baseball Field Drainage 
Project 

 
Meeting Date:    March 18, 2024 
 
Background/               
Description:                This is a summer project funded with the proceeds from the 2020 bond issue.  The 

District’s original estimate of $250,000 was based on a prior project (Millard 
West High School).  When the Engineer’s estimate was completed, it was 
discovered there was a different type of soil which increased the estimate.  The 
Millard North High School soil is a thicker clay (as opposed to more sandy soil at 
Millard West High School) that will increase the amount of soil replacement, 
driving the increased cost.  Thick clay soil does not drain as well as more porous 
sandy soils.  The project will address the current inability to play or practice at 
times on the field due to inadequate outfield drainage and would improve safety 
for student athletes.   

 
 A representative from Lamp Rynearson will be present to answer any questions. 
 
                                                                                                                                       
Action Desired:  It is recommended that the contract for the Millard North High School Baseball 

Field Drainage Project be awarded to Mack Bros. Groundskeeping in the amount 
of $452,225 and that the Chief Financial Officer be authorized to execute any and 
all documents related to such project.   

   
  
Policy /  
Strategic Plan  n/a 
Reference:         
 
      
Responsible Person(s):      Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
 
Superintendent’s Signature:  

 

128



 

 

March 5, 2024 
 
 
 
Mr. Jeremy Madson 
Millard Public Schools  
Support Service Center 
13906 F Street 
Omaha, NE 68137 
 
REFERENCE: MPS – North High School  
 Baseball Outfield Grading Improvements  
 Project No. 0123172.01-020/320 
Dear Mr. Madson: 
 
Enclosed are the tabulation of bids and a copy of the proposal of the low bidder for the Baseball Outfield Grading 
Improvements project at the above-referenced school. The original project budget was $250,000.00, and the  
engineer’s estimate for the project was $444,607.50.  Mack Bros. Groundskeeping submitted the low bid of 
$452,225.00.  
  
The low bidder has previously successfully completed this type of work for our clients and is qualified to 
complete this project. We recommend award of the work to Mack Bros. Groundskeeping. 
 
Please inform us if award of the work is to be made, so we can make the necessary arrangements. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
LAMP RYNEARSON  
 
 
 
D. Joe Oetken, P.E. 
Vice President 
 
Enclosures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
tb\L:\Engineering\0123172 MPS NHS BB Outfield Upgrades 2024\CONSTRUCTION\BIDPROP MACK BROS GROUNDSKEEPING 240305.docx 

129



MPS – NORTH HIGH SCHOOL 

BASEBALL OUTFIELD GRADING IMPRV

LAMP RYNEARSON

JOB NO.0123172.01-020/320

ENGINEER:  ZADINA/GOODRICH

ADDENDUMS ISSUED_1_

FEB 20, 2024 

PAGE 1 

ITEM 

NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

1 MOBILIZATION 1 LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $31,949.39 $31,949.39 $74,812.38 $74,812.38

2 UTILITY RELOCATION ALLOWANCE 1 LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

3 CONSTRUCT STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE 25 TN $140.00 $3,500.00 $125.00 $3,125.00 $73.31 $1,832.75

4 REMOVE FENCE AND SALVAGE SCREENING AND YELLOW PVC CORRUGATED CAP 640 LF $28.00 $17,920.00 $7.94 $5,081.60 $12.36 $7,910.40

5 REMOVE, SALVAGE, AND REINSTALL FOUL POLE 1 EA $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $2,071.93 $2,071.93

6 FRAISE MOW (2"), STOCKPILE & INCORPORATE IN AMENDED SOIL (650 CY X 2) - ESTABLISHED QUANTITY 1,300 CY $22.00 $28,600.00 $12.61 $16,393.00 $27.35 $35,555.00

7 EARTHWORK (EXCAVATE AND HAUL OFF SITE) - ESTABLISHED QUANTITY 1,900 CY $32.00 $60,800.00 $21.25 $40,375.00 $29.88 $56,772.00

8 EARTHWORK (HAUL IN AMENDED SOIL MATERIAL) - ESTABLISHED QUANTITY 1,850 CY $35.00 $64,750.00 $72.56 $134,236.00 $42.67 $78,939.50

9 REMOVE AND REPLACE UNSUITABLE MATERIAL (ASSUMED) 200 CY $50.00 $10,000.00 $55.00 $11,000.00 $16.10 $3,220.00

10 SUBGRADE PREPARATION 11,450 SY $1.50 $17,175.00 $2.85 $32,632.50 $1.38 $15,801.00

11 CONSTRUCT 3/16" RED TREAD WARNING TRACK (2" THICK) 50 CY $250.00 $12,500.00 $255.00 $12,750.00 $464.40 $23,220.00

12 CONSTRUCT 24" NYLOPLAST BASIN WITH SOLID COVER OVERTOP EXISTING STORM SEWER 2 EA $1,250.00 $2,500.00 $6,128.00 $12,256.00 $3,072.68 $6,145.36

13 CONSTRUCT 8" PERFORATED COLLECTOR PIPE WITH FITTINGS AND GRAVEL FILL PIPE BEDDING 615 LF $36.00 $22,140.00 $15.45 $9,501.75 $23.60 $14,514.00

14 CONSTRUCT 6" PERFORATED COLLECTOR PIPE WITH FITTINGS AND GRAVEL FILL PIPE BEDDING 2,275 LF $25.00 $56,875.00 $13.85 $31,508.75 $18.09 $41,154.75

15 CONSTRUCT 12" STORM SEWER PIPE WITH PIPE BEDDING 305 LF $55.00 $16,775.00 $22.86 $6,972.30 $43.99 $13,416.95

16 STABILIZE TRENCH WITH CRUSHED LIMESTONE (ASSUMED) 20 TN $250.00 $5,000.00 $85.00 $1,700.00 $3.67 $73.40

17 CONSTRUCT 24" NYLOPLAST DRAIN BASIN WITH SOLID COVER 1 EA $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $5,250.00 $5,250.00 $3,451.47 $3,451.47

18 CONSTRUCT 18" BURIED NYLOPLAST DRAIN BASIN WITH SOLID COVER 2 EA $1,250.00 $2,500.00 $4,185.00 $8,370.00 $2,663.72 $5,327.44

19 FURNISH AND INSTALL 6' TALL GALVANIZED CHAIN-LINK FENCE 640 LF $35.00 $22,400.00 $68.58 $43,891.20 $45.41 $29,062.40

20 INSTALL SODDING TYPE "HGT BLUEGRASS" 95,050 SF $0.75 $71,287.50 $0.65 $61,782.50 $0.70 $66,535.00

21 INSTALL ROLLED EROSION CONTROL, TYPE II 150 SY $3.35 $502.50 $12.00 $1,800.00 $13.24 $1,986.00

22 INSTALL SILT FENCE 1,100 LF $5.00 $5,500.00 $3.25 $3,575.00 $4.29 $4,719.00

23 REMOVE SILT FENCE 1,100 LF $2.50 $2,750.00 $1.00 $1,100.00 $1.83 $2,013.00

$452,225.00 $491,749.99 $498,533.73

NEMAHA SPORTS 

CONSTRUCTION, LLC

APPROXIMATE 

QUANTITY

TOTAL BID AMOUNT

MACK BROS 

GROUNDSKEEPING
MID AMERICA 

ENGINEERS ESTIMATE:$444,607.50

BID BOND AMOUNT:5% OF THE TOTAL BID tb\L:\Engineering\_Projects\TABS\2024\SCHOOLS\MPS NHS OUTFIELD.xlsx

130



___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

P R O J E C T  M E M O R A N D U M  
MPS – North High School Baseball Outfield Grading Improvements 

Project Narrative:  The current natural grass outfield at Millard North High School is 
characterized by poor drainage, uneven ground, and patchy grass.  A soil analysis also 
indicted that the outfield consists of a hard, poor-condition clay loam (see soil sample 
photos below).  This project consists of removing the existing sod, removing 8” of the poor 
condition soils, and removing the existing irrigation system.  8” of amended soils will then 
be placed, graded, and top dressed, and new sod will be installed.  In addition to the 
improved soils, subsurface lateral drain pipes will be installed to further promote better 
drainage.

Project Photos 

                

131



- 2 -
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Project Map: 

Sincerely,

LAMP RYNEARSON, INC.

Grant Goodrich, E.I.
Project Engineer

132



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

Agenda Item: Approval of Contract for Millard North High School Plaza Renovation 
 
Meeting Date:    March 18, 2024 
 
Background/               
Description:                This is a summer project funded with private fundraising dollars (from the Millard 

Public Schools Foundation) combined with non-bond funds from the District. 
 
 As indicated on the letter from Lamp Rynearson, the original bid received of 

$919,012.66 was materially over the District’s budget.  Therefore, the District 
worked with the low contractor and Lamp Rynearson to value engineer the project 
to reduce costs, resulting in a recommended deductive change order reducing the 
original bid by $224,689.74. 

 
 A representative from Lamp Rynearson will be present to answer any questions. 
 
                                                                                                                                       
Action Desired:  It is recommended that the contract for the Millard North High School Plaza 

Renovation be awarded to Mackie Construction in the amount (including the 
deductive change order) of $694,322.92 and that the Chief Financial Officer be 
authorized to execute any and all documents related to such project.   

   
  
Policy /  
Strategic Plan  n/a 
Reference:         
 
      
Responsible Person(s):      Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
 
Superintendent’s Signature:  

 

133



March 7, 2024 
 
 
 
Mr. John Brennan 
Millard Public Schools  
Support Service Center 
13906 F Street 
Omaha, NE 68137 
 
REFERENCE: Millard Public Schools (North High School) 
 Baseball Plaza Improvements 
 Job No. 0123178.01-020/320 
 
Dear Mr. Brennan: 
 
Enclosed are the tabulation of bids and a copy of the proposal of the low bidder for the Baseball Plaza 
Improvements project at the above-referenced school. original project budget was $625,000.00, and the 
engineer’s estimate for the project was $631,715.00. Mackie Construction submitted the low bid of 
$919,012.66. Following the bid opening, we value engineered items within the project to reduce the overall 
project cost, and have confirmed the cost reductions and item substitutions with Mackie Construction to 
arrive at a change order deductive amount of $224,689.74. The change order reductions include substituting 
items such as area drains in lieu of a trench drains, vinyl coated chain link in lieu of ornamental fencing and 
regular concrete in lieu of colored concrete. The overall project form and function is not being modified with 
the proposed change order items.  
 
The low bidder has previously successfully completed this type of work for Millard Public School, dating back 
to 2010, and is qualified to complete this project. We recommend award of the Base Bid and deductive change 
order to Mackie Construction.  After the accepted deductive change order, the contract price will be 
$694,322.92. 
 
Please inform us if award of the work is to be made, so we can make the necessary contractual arrangements. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
LAMP RYNEARSON  
 
 
 
Joseph P. Zadina, P.E. 
Planning & Landscape Architecture Group Leader  
 
Enclosures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
tb\L:\Engineering\0123178 MPS NHS Turf Field Drainage Plaza 2024\CONSTRUCTION\BIDPROP MACKIE CONSTRUCTION 240307.docx 

134



MPS – NORTH HIGH SCHOOL 
BASEBALL PLAZA IMPRV

LAMP RYNEARSON
JOB NO.0123178.01-020/320

ENGINEER:  ZADINA/GOODRICH

ADDENDUMS ISSUED_1_
FEB 20, 2024 

PAGE 1 

ITEM 
NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

1 MOBILIZATION 1 LS $16,808.40 $16,808.40 $44,868.00 $44,868.00
2 CONTINGENCY ALLOWANCE 1 LS $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00
3 LIGHTING ALLOWANCE 1 LS $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00
4 EXPLORATORY EXCAVATION 15 HR $243.60 $3,654.00 $360.00 $5,400.00
5 CONSTRUCT STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE 100 TN $45.07 $4,507.00 $54.00 $5,400.00
6 SAWCUT (FULL DEPTH) 300 LF $5.73 $1,719.00 $6.00 $1,800.00
7 REMOVE PAVEMENT 1,000 SY $7.31 $7,310.00 $10.80 $10,800.00
8 REMOVE GRAVEL (ASSUMED 5" THICKNESS) 1,350 SY $6.83 $9,220.50 $10.80 $14,580.00
9 REMOVE FENCE 380 LF $11.70 $4,446.00 $9.60 $3,648.00

10 REMOVE, SALVAGE, AND REINSTALL BLEACHERS 5 EA $6,699.00 $33,495.00 $9,600.00 $48,000.00
11 REMOVE TREE 2 EA $1,157.10 $2,314.20 $1,200.00 $2,400.00
12 REMOVE, SALVAGE, AND REINSTALL SYNTHETIC TURF MATS 5 EA $3,045.00 $15,225.00 $600.00 $3,000.00
13 REMOVE, SALVAGE, AND REINSTALL TABLES 5 EA $609.00 $3,045.00 $1,200.00 $6,000.00
14 REMOVE AND SALVAGE ADA PARKING SIGN 2 EA $182.70 $365.40 $120.00 $240.00
15 REMOVE AND SALVAGE FLAG AND FLAG POLE 1 EA $3,045.00 $3,045.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00
16 REMOVE AND SALVAGE TICKET BOOTH BUILDING 1 LS $4,263.00 $4,263.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00
17 REMOVE, SALVAGE AND REINSTALL DONOR PAVERS 150 SF $75.39 $11,308.50 $92.90 $13,935.00
18 REMOVE GRATE INLET 1 EA $1,035.30 $1,035.30 $1,800.00 $1,800.00
19 EARTHWORK (HAUL ON SITE) - ESTABLISHED QUANTITY 175 CY $42.63 $7,460.25 $24.00 $4,200.00
20 SUBGRADE PREPARATION 3,800 SY $2.32 $8,816.00 $9.60 $36,480.00
21 CONSTRUCT 8" STORM SEWER PIPE WITH PIPE BEDDING 75 LF $60.90 $4,567.50 $32.93 $2,469.75
22 CONSTRUCT 10" STORM SEWER PIPE WITH PIPE BEDDING 70 LF $69.43 $4,860.10 $46.80 $3,276.00
23 CONSTRUCT 12" STORM SEWER PIPE WITH PIPE BEDDING 320 LF $74.30 $23,776.00 $46.97 $15,030.40

24
FURNISH AND INSTALL KLASSIKDRAIN K200 TRENCH DRAIN (BY ACO DRAIN) AND ADA COMPLIANT GRATE WITH PC 
CONCRETE ENCASEMENT 235 LF $567.19 $133,289.65 $578.50 $135,947.50

25 FURNISH AND INSTALL IN-LINE CATCH BASIN 2 EA $3,049.88 $6,099.76 $1,380.00 $2,760.00
26 CONSTRUCT 18" NYLOPLAST DRAIN BASIN WITH BOLTED DOWN STANDARD GRATE 3 EA $2,891.54 $8,674.62 $3,000.00 $9,000.00
27 CONSTRUCT 18" NYLOPLAST DRAIN BASIN WITH SOLID COVER 1 EA $2,937.82 $2,937.82 $2,858.40 $2,858.40
28 CONSTRUCT 48" HP DRAIN BASIN MANHOLE WITH ADS BARRACUDA MAX S4 OK-110 1 LS $39,959.54 $39,959.54 $56,426.40 $56,426.40
29 CONSTRUCT 24" NYLOPLAST DRAIN BASIN WITH SOLID COVER OVERTOP EXISTING STORM SEWER 1 EA $7,403.01 $7,403.01 $6,171.60 $6,171.60
30 STABILIZE TRENCH WITH CRUSHED LIMESTONE (ASSUMED) 50 TN $63.34 $3,167.00 $90.00 $4,500.00

CORN FED

APPROXIMATE 
QUANTITY

MACKIE CONSTRUCTION

ENGINEERS ESTIMATE:$631,715.00
BID BOND AMOUNT:5% OF THE TOTAL BID tb\L:\Engineering\_Projects\TABS\2024\SCHOOLS\MPS NHS BASEBALL PLAZA.xlsx

135



MPS – NORTH HIGH SCHOOL 
BASEBALL PLAZA IMPRV

LAMP RYNEARSON
JOB NO.0123178.01-020/320

ENGINEER:  ZADINA/GOODRICH

ADDENDUMS ISSUED_1_
FEB 20, 2024 

PAGE 2 

ITEM 
NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

CORN FED

APPROXIMATE 
QUANTITY

MACKIE CONSTRUCTION

31 CONSTRUCT 5" PC CONCRETE SIDEWALK 30,100 SF $8.65 $260,365.00 $9.58 $288,358.00
32 CONSTRUCT 2' CURB AND GUTTER 100 LF $31.84 $3,184.00 $35.22 $3,522.00
33 DRILL AND EPOXY #5 X 30" EPOXY-COATED TIE BARS AT 36" CENTERS 100 EA $11.13 $1,113.00 $6.21 $621.00
34 CONSTRUCT 5" THICK FULL DEPTH PC COLORED CONCRETE 3,400 SF $15.00 $51,000.00 $14.87 $50,558.00
35 CONSTRUCT THICKENED EDGE 50 LF $30.64 $1,532.00 $15.25 $762.50
36 CONSTRUCT PRECAST CONCRETE CUBE WITH FOOTING 7 EA $2,517.07 $17,619.49 $2,765.62 $19,359.34
37 CONSTRUCT PLANTER CURB WALL 210 LF $36.73 $7,713.30 $62.69 $13,164.90
38 ADJUST UTILITY TO GRADE 2 EA $304.50 $609.00 $1,800.00 $3,600.00
39 ADJUST MANHOLE TO GRADE 2 EA $304.50 $609.00 $900.00 $1,800.00
40 FURNISH, INSTALL, AND REMOVE 6' TEMPORARY CHAIN LINK FENCE 410 LF $17.81 $7,302.10 $21.11 $8,655.10
41 FURNISH AND INSTALL 6' TALL STEEL BLACK ORNAMENTAL FENCE 215 LF $196.84 $42,320.60 $90.00 $19,350.00
42 FURNISH AND INSTALL 6' TALL BLACK VINYL COATED CHAIN LINK FENCE 150 LF $60.71 $9,106.50 $66.00 $9,900.00
43 FURNISH AND INSTALL 4' TALL BLACK VINYL COATED CHAIN LINK FENCE 250 LF $47.81 $11,952.50 $52.44 $13,110.00
44 CONSTRUCT 16' WIDE X 6' TALL STEEL BLACK  DOUBLE SWING ORNAMENTAL GATE 1 EA $4,757.81 $4,757.81 $6,282.00 $6,282.00
45 CONSTRUCT 10' WIDE X 6' TALL DOUBLE SWING BLACK VINYL COATED CHAIN LINK GATE 1 EA $3,272.77 $3,272.77 $5,748.00 $5,748.00
46 CONSTRUCT 16' WIDE X 6' TALL DOUBLE SWING BLACK VINYL COATED CHAIN LINK GATE 1 EA $4,126.59 $4,126.59 $5,748.00 $5,748.00
47 CONSTRUCT SALVAGED PAVERS WITH SAND SETTING BED AND 5" CONCRETE BASE 80 SF $35.47 $2,837.60 $34.94 $2,795.20
48 CONSTRUCT BRICK COLUMN WITH FOOTING 4 EA $15,072.75 $60,291.00 $9,175.50 $36,702.00
49 ARCH ENTRANCE SIGN ALLOWANCE 1 LS $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00
50 INSTALL SALVAGED FLAG AND FLAG POLE 1 EA $3,045.00 $3,045.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00
51 CONSTRUCT SALVAGED TICKET BOOTH OVERTOP 5" PC CONCRETE 1 LS $1,827.00 $1,827.00 $2,400.00 $2,400.00
52 INSTALL SALVAGED ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGN 2 EA $182.70 $365.40 $120.00 $240.00
53 INSTALL PRECAST CONCRETE WHEEL STOP 8 EA $182.70 $1,461.60 $524.75 $4,198.00
54 INSTALL SEEDING - TYPE A 250 SY $2.44 $610.00 $3.00 $750.00
55 ROLLED EROSION CONTROL, TYPE II 250 SY $2.44 $610.00 $3.00 $750.00
56 INSTALL SILT FENCE 450 LF $3.48 $1,566.00 $4.80 $2,160.00
57 REMOVE SILT FENCE 450 LF $1.22 $549.00 $2.40 $1,080.00
58 HARDWOOD MULCH 7 CY $179.05 $1,253.35 $120.00 $840.00
59 INSTALL PINUS STROBUS (EASTERN WHITE PINE) 5 EA $548.10 $2,740.50 $900.00 $4,500.00

$919,012.66 $994,645.09TOTAL BID AMOUNT

$926,016.36

ENGINEERS ESTIMATE:$631,715.00
BID BOND AMOUNT:5% OF THE TOTAL BID tb\L:\Engineering\_Projects\TABS\2024\SCHOOLS\MPS NHS BASEBALL PLAZA.xlsx

136



___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

P R O J E C T  M E M O R A N D U M  
MPS – North High School Baseball Plaza Improvements 2024 

Project Narrative:  

Millard North’s current baseball plaza area consists primarily of gravel, settled concrete, and 
unhealthy landscaping.  The current soccer plaza area has a grassy low spot which has 
notoriously been soft and difficult to maintain.  This project addresses these plaza issues while 
also creating a more welcoming entrance to the athletic complex.  

The project consists of removing the gravel and settled concrete, and paving the entire plaza 
area near the baseball field.  The grassy low spot south of the soccer field will also be paved.  
Storm sewer will be installed to collect the drainage in the plaza areas, and new trees will be 
planted in confined landscaping beds.  Additionally, brick columns, an overhead arch sign, and 
concrete cubes will be installed at the south end of the baseball plaza.  This will establish a 
prominent entrance to the sports complex that has a similar look and feel to the main entrance 
of the building. 

      Project Photos

 

137



- 2 -
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

  

138



___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Project Map: 

Sincerely,

LAMP RYNEARSON, INC.

Grant Goodrich, E.I.
Project Engineer

139



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

Agenda Item: Approval of Contract for Millard South High School Pool Area Lighting 
Replacement 

 
Meeting Date:    March 18, 2024 
 
Background/               
Description:                This is a summer project funded with the proceeds from the 2020 bond issue. 
 
 A representative from Morrissey Engineering will be present to answer any 

questions. 
 
                                                                                                                                       
Action Desired:  It is recommended that the contract for the Millard South High School Pool Area 

Lighting Replacement be awarded to Superior Lighting in the amount of $258,650 
and that the Chief Financial Officer be authorized to execute any and all 
documents related to such project.   

   
  
Policy /  
Strategic Plan  n/a 
Reference:         
 
      
Responsible Person(s):      Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
 
Superintendent’s Signature:  

 

140



 

4940 North 118th Street 
Omaha, NE 68164 
P: 402.491.4144 

www.morrisseyengineering.com 

 
 
 

 

 
February 28, 2024 
 
Millard Public Schools 
5606 South 147th Street 
Omaha, NE 68137 
 
Attn: John Brennan 
 
Project #24026:  South High School Pool Lighting Replacement 
RE: Bid Proposals dated February 28, 2024 
 
Mr. Brennan: 
 
Bids were received for the South High School Pool Lighting Replacement at MPS Support Services 
Center on February 28th, 2024 at 10:00 a.m.  Per the attached bid tab, two bids were received.  The low 
bid was submitted by Superior Lighting in the amount of $258,650.  Superior has satisfactorily completed 
several projects with Morrissey Engineering and MPS in the past, including multiple lighting projects.   
 
The original budget estimate for this lighting replacement was $250,000     
 
Following discussions with district staff, we recommend awarding the bid to Superior Lighting in the 
amount of $258,650 (two hundred fifty-eight thousand six hundred fifty dollars).   
 
Superior indicated on their Bid Proposal they would finish by August 16th, 2024 per the specifications.  
 
Please advise if you require any additional information. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Jeff Hemje, PE 
 
Enclosure 
 
 

141



PROJECT:  MPS South High School Pool Lighting Replacement

BID DATE: 2/28/2024

BID TIME: 10:00 AM

MEI PROJECT NO.: 24026

BIDDERS Base Bid Addendum #1 Bid Bond Comments

Bids to replace the pool lighting South High School per the bid documents dated 2-12-2024

YESSUPERIOR LIGHTING $258,650 YES

BID TABULATION

DOWNS ELECTRIC $342,850 YESYES

142



 

4940 North 118th Street 
Omaha, NE 68164 
P: 402.491.4144 

www.morrisseyengineering.com 

 
 

 

memorandum      

    
attn: John Brennan from: Jeff Hemje 
company: Millard Public Schools date: 2/28/2024 
project name: South High School Pool Lighting Replacement 
mei project: 24026 
re: Project Narrative 
cc:  
  

  
 
Mr. Brennan,  
 
The pool lighting at South High School was installed as part of the 1999 building addition.  The pool area 
lighting consists of high intensity discharge (HID) lighting that produces low quality light, has a short lamp 
life compared to available LED technology, and are located in difficult to maintain locations. 
 
This project includes the replacement of the pool and spectator area lighting with long-life LED fixtures 
and adjusts the fixtures to be at more accessible and maintainable locations. 
 
Photos of existing pool area lighting below for reference. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

143



Morrissey Engineering Memo 
Project Name - 24026 

Project Narrative 
2/28/2024 

 

 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

144



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

Agenda Item: Approval of Contract for Kiewit Middle School Flooring Replacement 
 
 
Meeting Date:    March 18, 2024 
 
Background/               
Description:                This is a summer project funded with the proceeds from the 2020 bond issue. 
 
 A representative from BCDM Architects will be present to answer any questions. 
 
                                                                                                                                       
Action Desired:  It is recommended that the contract for the Kiewit Middle School Flooring 

Replacement be awarded to Commercial Flooring Systems in the amount of 
$69,340 and that the Chief Financial Officer be authorized to execute any and all 
documents related to such project.   

   
  
Policy /  
Strategic Plan  n/a 
Reference:         
 
      
Responsible Person(s):      Chad Meisgeier, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
 
Superintendent’s Signature:  

 

145



 

 

 

1015 North 98th Street, Suite 300          Omaha, NE 68114          402-391-2211          www.bcdm.net 

07 March 2024 
 
Mr. Chad Meisgeier 
Millard Public Schools 
Don Stroh Administration Center 
5606 South 147th Street 
Omaha, NE 68137 
 
RE: MPS Kiewit Middle School – Flooring Replacement 

BCDM Project No. 3026-15 
 
 

Dear Chad: 
 
On February 29, 2024, bids were received for the above referenced project at the MPS Support Services Center. Per the 
attached bid tabulation sheet, three (3) bids were received with a low bid of $52,750 from Commercial Flooring 
Systems. The original project budget was $75,000.   
 
In addition to the base bid amount, Commercial Flooring Systems submitted a bid of an additional $16,590 for Alternate 
No. 1 to replace the flooring in the corridors and locker zone within the 6th grade wing. 
 
Since the time of the bid opening, we have confirmed with Commercial Flooring Systems that they are comfortable with 

their bid.  We have also reviewed this bid received with MPS staff and would recommend a contract be awarded to 

Commercial Flooring Systems for the base bid as well as Alternate 1 for the combined total amount of $69,340 

for the Kiewit Middle School Flooring Replacement project. 

Upon your approval, we can proceed with the preparation of contracts.  Please let me know if you should have any questions 
or concerns. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Charlsi Kratina 
IIDA 
 
CK/mmm 
Attachment:  Bid Tab  
 
e-copy: File: 3026-15_5-2 

146



February 29, 2024
Omaha, NE 68114

BID TABULATION - 
BCDM No. 3026-15

COMMERCIAL FLOORING 
SYSTEMS

FLOORS                                  
INC.

WORKSPACE                                
FLOORING

Lump Sum Base Bid $52,750 $56,900 $56,000

Addenda (1) Yes Yes Yes

Bid Security Yes Yes Yes

Alternate:

No. 1: Demo existing carpet 
and vinyl base $16,590 $17,900 $18,900

Alternate

1. Demo existing carpet and vinyl base and provide new VCT flooring and vinyl base in rooms as noted on Drawings.

1015 North 98th Street, Suite 300

KIEWIT MIDDLE SCHOOL - FLOOR REPLACEMENT                                                                                                                           
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

Page 1

147



 

 

 

1015 North 98th Street, Suite 300          Omaha, NE 68114          402-391-2211          www.bcdm.net 

PROJECT MEMORANDUM 
 
MPS – Kiewit Middle School – Flooring Replacement       DATE: March 7, 2024 
BCDM Project: 3026-15 
 
 
PROJECT NARRATIVE:   
The project includes removal and replacement of flooring in the 6th grade wing of Kiewit Middle School.  The base bid 
includes removal of existing carpet in the classrooms that is original to the building addition and is currently buckling.  The 
classrooms will receive new carpet tile, except for two Science/HAL classrooms that will receive new VCT (Vinyl 
Composition Tile).  The alternate bid includes removal of existing carpet in the corridors and locker zone, and installation 
of new VCT in those areas.  The new VCT will brighten the spaces, and the patterning will incorporate school colors and 
visually add interest down the corridor. 
 
 
PROJECT PHOTOS:   
 

    
 
 

148



MPS – Kiewit Middle School – Flooring Replacement 
Project Memorandum 
Page 2 

 

B C D M    A R C H I T E C T S 

 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

149



MPS – Kiewit Middle School – Flooring Replacement 
Project Memorandum 
Page 3 

 

BCDM ARCHITECTS 

PROJECT PLAN:   
The portions highlighted green shall receive new carpet tile.  The portions with the grid and patterning represent the new 
VCT flooring. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

150



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Agenda Item: 

Meeting Date: 

Background 

Description: 

Action Desired: 

Policy / 

Strategic Plan Reference: 

Responsible Person(s): 

Human Resources 

March 18, 202  

Personnel Items: 2 , (3) Leave of 
Absence Agenda

Approval 

N/A

Dr Kevin Chick 

Associate Superintendent of Human Resources 

Superintendent’s Signatu

151



March 18, 2024 
 

TEACHER RECOMMENDED FOR HIRE 
 

  
 

Recommend: The following teachers be hired for the 2024-2025 school year: 
1. Emily H. Cleveland – MA – University of Nebraska, Lincoln.  Math teacher at Millard 

South High School for the 2024-2025 school year. Previous Experience: Franklin Public 
Schools, NE (2021-Present) 

2. Antonio S. Rinn – BA – Midland University. Math teacher at Central Middle School for the 
2024-2025 school year. 

3. Chelsea J. Heuer – MA – California State University, Fullerton. Special Education Preschool 
teacher at Upchurch Elementary School for the 2024-2025 school year.  Previous 
Experience: Anaheim School District (2014-Present) 

4. Kayla M. Sonnleitner – MA – University of Nebraska, Omaha.  Grade 3 teacher at 
Hitchcock Elementary for the 2024-2025 school year. Previous Experience: CADRE teacher 
and classroom teacher for Millard Public Schools (2022-Present) 

5. Blake R. Anderson – MA+18 – Wayne State University.  Dean of Students at Millard South 
High School for the 2024-2025 school year. Previous Experience: Bellevue Public Schools 
(2013-Present); Boystown, NE (2011-2013); Humphrey Public Schools (2006-2011) 

6. Madeline M. Putler – BA – University of Nebraska, Omaha. Special Education teacher at 
Cody Elementary School for the 2024-2025 school year. 

7. Elizabeth R. Motazedi – BA – Northwest Missouri State College.  Social Studies teacher at 
Millard South High School for the 2024-2025 school year. 

8. Allyson A. Paradee – MA+2 – University of Idaho. Grade 6 teacher at Millard North Middle 
School for the 2024-2025 school year. Previous Experience: Louisville Public Schools, NE 
(2023-Present); Grand Forks Public Schools, ND (2021-2023); Walnut Grove Public 
Schools, MO (2018-2021) 

9. Hanna E. Cahill – MA – Peru State College. Special Education (ACP) teacher at Millard 
North Middle School for the 2024-2025 school year. Previous Experience: Papillion La 
Vista Community Schools (2018-Present) 

10. Jenna N. Caton – MA – University of Nebraska, Omaha. Speech Language Pathologist for 
Millard Public Schools for the 2024-2025 school year. 

11. Sydney N. Streicher – University of Nebraska, Omaha. Speech Language Pathologist for 
Millard Public Schools for the 2024-2025 school year. 

 

152



March 18, 2024 
 

RESIGNATIONS 
 

Recommend: The following resignation(s) be accepted: 
 

1. Madison M. Foxx – Math teacher at Russell Middle School.  Resigning at the end of 
the 2023-2024 school year for employment outside of education. 

2. Sarah J. Shaffer – Spanish teacher at Millard West High School. Resigning at the end 
of the end of the 2023-2024 school year for personal reasons. (school)   

3. Lindsey R. Kaiser – Montessori teacher at Montclair Elementary School. Resigning at 
the end of the 2023-2024 school year for personal family reasons.  (Currently on a 
Leave of Absence) 

4. Haley R. Douglas – Grade 2 teacher at Wheeler Elementary School. Resigning at the 
end of the 2023-2024 school year for personal reasons. (Currently on a Leave of 
Absence) 

5. Justin A. Higgins – Science teacher at Millard West High School. Resigning at the 
end of the 2023-2024 school year to take a teaching position with Lincoln Public 
Schools. 

6. Megan M. Houdek – Speech Language Pathologist at Harvey Oaks Elementary 
School. Resigning at the end of the 2023-2024 school year because of family 
relocation. 

7. Shelby A. Siel – Kindergarten teacher at Ackerman Elementary School. Resigning at 
the end of the 2023-2024 school year because of family relocation. 

8. Sierra A. Jaime – World Language teacher at Millard North Middle School.  
Resigning at the end of the 2023-2024 school year for personal family reasons. 

9. Gayathri K. Vel – Montessori teacher at Montclair Elementary School. Resigning at 
the end of the 2023-2024 school year because of family relocation. 

10. Kurt E. Nielsen – Grade 6 teacher at Russell Middle School. Resigning at the end of 
the 2023-2024 school year to take a teaching position with Gretna Public Schools. 

11. Chloe C. Staley – Grade 6 teacher at Russell Middle School. Resigning at the end of 
the 2023-2024 school year for employment outside of education. 

12. Miranda A. Porter – Grade 2 teacher at Reeder Elementary School. Resigning at the 
end of the 2023-2024 for employment outside of education. 

13. Lynette R. Wieger – Teacher Librarian at Hitchcock Elementary School. Retiring at 
the end of the 2023-2024 school year. 

14. Theresa J. Burdick – Dean of Students at Central Middle School. Resigning at the end 
of the 2023-2024 school year for employment outside of education. 

15. Molly E. Warren – Grade 3 teacher at Ezra Elementary School. Resigning at the end 
of the 2023-2024 school year because of personal family reasons. 

 
 
 
 

 

153



March 18, 2024 
 

LEAVE OF ABSENCE 

Recommend:  The following Leave of Absence be accepted: 
 

1. Mallory N. Limberg – Art teacher at Millard North High School. Requesting a Leave of 
Absence for personal reasons for the 2024-2025 school year. 

2. Stacy A. Kester-Pearson – MEA Representative for Millard Public Schools.  Requesting a Leave of 
Absence for the 2024-2025 school year. 

3. Madison P. Jenkins – Grade 3 teacher at Ezra Elementary School. Requesting a Leave of 
Absence for personal reasons for the 2024-2025 school year. 

 

154



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

Agenda Item: Post Graduate Enrollment (Class of 2022), Degree Completion (Class of 2017), and College
Preparatory (Class of 2020) Reports

Meeting Date: March 18, 2024

Background/
Description: Included in this report is trend data for postsecondary enrollment and degree completion of

Millard graduates. This report presents data to compare the post-secondary participation of
Millard graduates with state and national data for College-going Rate and Degree Completion.
This information is obtained from data collected by Nebraska Department of Education (NDE)
from the National Student Clearinghouse (NSC).
● The Millard College-Going Rate for the Class of 2022, represented by enrollment in

post-secondary education within the first year after graduation from high school is 80%
compared to the Nebraska College-going Rate of 72%.

● The Millard degree completion for the Class of 2017 is 63%, which represents both two and
four year degrees. The Nebraska degree completion rate is 52% representing both two and
four year degrees. The National degree completion rate is 62% which represents both two
and four year degrees.

A summary of results from theMillard College Preparatory Survey completed for the first time
in the Spring of 2020 with the Class of 2017 is included with an update for the Class of 2020. As
we have reviewed these data points over the past few years, we have wondered about how our
students felt about their preparation for post secondary education. The survey is a measure
to determine how prepared our students felt, so we can make adjustments to improve the
educational program.

The National Student Clearinghouse is starting to track Certificate completion. This is a new area
we will explore moving to forward to determine how we can capture that data in this report as
well.

Action Desired: Information Only

Strategic Plan
Reference: Parameter: We will always expect each student to set and achieve challenging educational and

career goals tailored to his/her abilities, interests, and aspirations.

Responsible Dr. Heather Phipps, Dr. Anthony Weers, Dr. Melanie Olson, & Mrs. Tami Whitted
Persons:

Superintendent’s
Signature:

1

155



Post Graduate Enrollment Report (Class of 2022)

This graduate follow-up report presents data to compare the post-secondary participation of Millard graduates
with state and national data for College-going Rate and Degree Completion. This information is obtained from
data collected by the Nebraska Department of Education (NDE) from the National Student Clearinghouse
(NSC). There is no charge to the district for data obtained from NDE.

College-going Rate for Class of 2022
The College-going Rate for Nebraska and Millard is measured by the number of students enrolled in a
postsecondary institution between August 15, 2022 and October 15, 2023 and was obtained from the Nebraska
High School Feedback Report from the Nebraska Department of Education. Postsecondary enrollment is
considered after high school graduation, therefore student enrollment during high school in dual enrollment
opportunities such as Academies or the Early College High School program are not considered as part of this
data. The National College-going rate is dependent upon data from the National Center for Education Statistics
and is measured by the number of students enrolled in 2-or 4-year colleges in the fall immediately after
completing high school and represents a year behind the Nebraska and Millard Class specified.

College Going Rate

Class National Nebraska Millard
District

2022 62% 72% 80%
2021 63% 73% 80%
2020 66% 73% 80%
2019 69% 75% 83%
2018 69% 76% 82%
2017 67% 70% 82%

College Going Rate
The following chart represents Millard graduates enrolled any time during the first year after graduation.

College Going Rate by Ethnicity

Class

American
Indian/
Alaskan
Native

Asian Pacific
Islander

Black or
African
American

Hispanic
Two or
More
Races

White

2022 —- 93% 67% 70% 75% 76% 80%
2021 100% 92% 100% 84% 66% 74% 81%
2020 67% 90% 67% 84% 68% 88% 80%
2019 67% 92% 75% 76% 83% 80% 83%
2018 80% 95% 80% 69% 81% 78% 82%
2017 60% 95% 80% 69% 81% 80% 82%

2

156



College Going Rate by Economic Status
The following chart shows college going rate by students participating in the Free or Reduced price lunch
program. Graduates enrolled any time during the first year after graduation.

College Going Rate by Economic Status

Class District Overall Free/Reduced Lunch
Qualifying

2022 80% 61%
2021 80% 64%
2020 80% 65%
2019 83% 75%
2018 82% 63%
2017 82% 63%

Enrollment Institutions
The information in the tables below represents a profile of college-going graduates from Millard compared to
college-going graduates in the state of Nebraska. Students may attend multiple institutions in the year
immediately following high school.

Profile of College-Going Graduates

Name MPS Class
of 2022

Nebraska
Class of
2022

MPS Class
of 2021

Nebraska
Class of
2021

In-state Colleges 73% 81% 76% 83%
Out of state Colleges 17% 9% 15% 9%
Both In and Out of state colleges 10% 10% 9% 8%

Private Colleges 8% 5% 10% 6%
Public Colleges 86% 87% 84% 86%
Both Private and Public Colleges 6% 8% 6% 8%

2-year Colleges 28% 41% 26% 39%
4-year Colleges 47% 29% 49% 33%
Both 2 and 4 year colleges 25% 30% 25% 28%

3

157



Degree Completion for Class of 2017

Degree Completion is measured by the number of people who completed an Associates or Bachelors degree
within six years; certificates are not included. Students are only counted once even if they have earned multiple
degrees, for example the Class of 2017 had many students earning advanced degrees including Masters degrees
in several fields and Doctor of Pharmacy. National data and Millard data include students who completed their
degree at any college. Nebraska data includes only students who completed their degree at the same college.
Eighty-two percent of the Class of 2017 enrolled in post-secondary education within a year after they graduated
high school.

Degree Completion Rate

Class National Nebraska Millard
2017 62% 52% 63%
2016 62% 52% 63%
2015 62% 50% 62%
2014 61% 50% 61%
2013 61% 50% 63%
2012 58% 54% 63%

National Data: Lee, S. & Shapiro, D. (November 2023), Completing College: National and State Report with Longitudinal Data Dashboard on Six-
and Eight-Year Completion Rates. (Signature Report 22), Herndon, VA: National Student Clearinghouse Research Center

Nebraska Data: Nebraska’s Coordinating Commission for Postsecondary Education – 2023 Higher Education Progress Report, Appendix 10, Most
recent data available through 2020-2021 school year based on National Center for Education Statistics, IPEDS 2010 through 2021 surveys

Millard Data: From the National Student Clearinghouse data, provided by the Nebraska Department of Education.

4

158



Millard College Preparatory Survey Results

In the fall of 2023, a survey was conducted by the UNL Bureau of Sociological Research (BOSR) in which
members of the Millard graduating class of 2020 were contacted. Of the 933 graduates sampled, 18.2% (170
individuals) completed the survey. The participants were asked a variety of questions including coursework
while in high school, preparation for post-secondary, attendance at post-secondary institutions after high school,
and given a chance to provide open-ended written responses.

Survey participants were asked about coursework while in high school.

High
School
Course
Work

Postsecondary:
● Enrolled in a 4-year University experience

Postsecondary:
● Did not enroll in a post-secondary experience
● Enrolled in Postsecondary but did not continue
● Enrolled in a 2-year college experience
● Enrolled in vocational or technical school

experience

Class of
2020
(98

responses)

Class of
2019
(106

responses)

Class of
2018
(123

responses)

Class of
2017
(212

responses)

Class of
2020
(72

responses)

Class of
2019
(38

responses)

Class of
2018
(41

responses)

Class of
2017
(62

responses)

Took four
years of high
school
mathematics

78% 82% 73% 73% 74% 89% 50% 61%

Took at least
one
Advanced
Placement
course

85% 85% 80% 84% 51% 76% 29% 39%

Took a dual
enrollment
course

44% 42% 34% 31% 28% 53% 12% 13%

Earned 11 or
more college
credit hours
while in high
school

45% 46% 35% 40% 16% 34% 2% 6%

Felt prepared
or very
prepared for
success after
high school

67% 84% 80% 76% 35% 58% 24% 39%

5

159



Post-secondary experience was the next area asked about on the survey.

Of the fourteen (8%) respondents who never enrolled in a post-secondary experience the reasons most cited
were*:

● I began a career (71%)
● It was no longer financially feasible (64%)
● I could not decide on a major (57%)
● It was too overwhelming (43%)
● I was not adequately prepared to take classes at a post-secondary institution (36%)
● Classes were too difficult and/or I was not able to maintain the needed GPA (29%)
● I had family commitments (21%)

Postsecondary
experience

Post-secondary:
● Enrolled in a 4-year University experience
● Enrolled in Postsecondary but did not continue
● Enrolled in a 2-year college experience
● Enrolled in vocational or technical school experience

Class of 2020
(156 responses)

Class of 2019
(133 responses)

Class of 2018
(148 responses)

Class of 2017
(260 responses)

Did not have to take
any non-credit or
remedial courses
while in college.

74% 92% 84% 80%

Felt very prepared
to somewhat
prepared BEFORE
taking college
classes.

53% 82% 68% 73%

Felt very prepared
to somewhat
prepared AFTER
taking college
classes

63% 88% 73% 79%

Thirteen percent of respondents (22) indicated they were enrolled in a post-secondary institution but did not
continue this experience. Of those respondents:

● The reasons they indicated for not continuing were* :
○ I began a career (64%)
○ I graduated (50%)
○ It was too overwhelming (23%)
○ I could not decide on a major (14%)
○ The classes were too difficult and/or I was not able to maintain the needed GPA (14%)

● When they stopped taking classes was:
○ 18% during their first year
○ 32% sometime after the first year
○ 50% did not specify when they stopped taking classes.

6

160



Participants who did enroll in a post-secondary were asked about their experiences.

Of the fifty-eight percent (99) of respondents who enrolled in a four-year university post-secondary experience:
● 89% were satisfied with their decision to attend a four-year institution rather than a two-year college.
● Reasons most cited for being satisfied with their decision to attend a four-year institution include*:

○ Specific Degree (43)
○ Environment & Opportunities (12)
○ Personal goal (7)
○ Well rounded education (4)

The courses or subject areas the respondents indicated most prepared them for college*:
● Mathematics (21)
● English Language Arts (37)
● Science (21)
● Social Studies (10)

Participants were asked if there were any courses or subject areas they should have taken or that should have
been offered that would have helped prepare them for college*:

● Finance (11)
● Science (6)
● ELA (8)
● None (13)

The life skills that most prepared them for college*:
● Citizenship and Personal Responsibility (31)
● Collaboration and Teamwork ( 15)
● Critical Thinking and Problem Solving Skills (19)

Life skills that would have been helpful to learn to prepare for college*:
● Citizenship and Personal Responsibility (34)
● Critical Thinking and Problem Solving (12)

Respondents were offered the opportunity to submit free responses to numerous questions.

Common themes among the responses:
● Satisfaction with courses and teacher support offered in Millard
● Benefits of dual credit courses, academies, and special programs
● The need for financial literacy
● More information about college costs and financial aid
● More instruction on study skills such as time management, organization, and how to conduct research
● Additional experiences with basic life skills such as credit cards, bill paying, and taxes
● Additional experiences for internships, resume building, professional communication, and interviewing

for jobs
● Increased support for mental health issues such as anxiety and family conflict

*Respondents could select more than one answer
7

161


	Board Treasurer Report March 18 2024.pdf
	Board 03-18-24.pdf
	Millard Public Schools
	March 18, 2024


	Check Register 03-18-24
	Activity Fund Reports 03-18-24

	Reaffirm 4105 District Induction Programs.pdf
	ADPC391.tmp
	Human Resources


	Approve Revision of Rule 4105.1 - MPS Induction Program.pdf
	ADPCFCC.tmp
	Human Resources
	MPS Induction Program         4105.1


	Reaffirm Rule 4105.2 New Administrator Induction Program.pdf
	ADPD7B0.tmp
	Human Resources
	New Administrator Induction Program       4105.2


	First Reading of Policy 8100.pdf
	ADP623A.tmp
	Internal Board Policies


	Reaffirm Policy 8000.pdf
	ADPF57.tmp
	Internal Board Policies


	Approval of Contract for Millard South High School Pool Area Lighting Replacement.pdf
	SHS Pool Lighting Replacement Recommendation and Scope Memo.pdf
	24026 SHS Pool Lighting Replacement Recommendation
	24026 MPS SHS Pool Lighting Replacement Bid Tab





